
 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
P.O. Box 2451 ♦ DAYTONA BEACH, FL 32115-2451 ♦ (386) 671-8180 

 

Michael O. Sznapstajler 
Chairman 

Quanita May 
Commissioner 
Sheryl A. Cook 

Joseph H. Hopkins 
Tammy M. Kozinski 

 

AGENDA 
Thursday, May 27, 2021 8:00 a.m.  

Conference Room 149-B 
 
NOTICE – Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if any person decides to appeal any decision made by this 
Board at this public meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and, for that purpose, such person may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence 
upon which the appeal is to be based.  The City does not prepare or provide such a record. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with a disability needing a special 
accommodation to participate in the Board meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office, 301 S. Ridgewood Ave, 
Room 210, Daytona Beach, FL 32114, Ph: (386) 671-8023, Email: clerk@codb.us not later than 72 hours prior to the 
proceedings.  If you are hearing or voice impaired contact the relay operator at 1-800-955-9771. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of Minutes:  

a. Regular Meeting: April 22, 2021 
 

4. DDA Staff Report 

a. Public Safety Update 
b. Monthly Financial Report 
c. Preliminary FY2022 Budget Recommendations 
d. Events Update 
e. Farmers’ Market Update 
f. Downtown Projects Update 

 
5. Gold & Associates Presentation 

a. Monthly Presentation  
 

6. Public Comments 
 

7. Board Comments 
 

8. Adjournment 

 

 

For special 
accommodations, please 
notify the City Clerk's Office 
at least 72 hours in 
advance. (386) 671-8023 

 

 

 

Help for the hearing impaired 
is available through the 
Assistive Listening System. 
Receivers can be obtained 
from the City Clerk's Office. 



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
MINUTES 

Thursday, April 22, 2021 
 
 
The meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held Thursday, April 22, 
2021 at 8:00 a.m. in the Commission Chambers, 301 S. Ridgewood Avenue, 
Daytona Beach, Florida.  The following people were present: 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Mr. Michael Sznapstajler, Chair 
Ms. Sheryl Cook, Vice Chair  
Mr. Joseph Hopkins  
Ms. Tammy Kozinski  
Ms. Quanita May, Commissioner (arrived at 8:15 a.m.) 
 
Staff Members Present 
 
Mr. Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 
Mr. Robert Jagger, City Attorney 
Ms. Becky Groom, Board Secretary 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Mr. Sznapstajler called the meeting to order at 8:10 a.m.   
 

2. Roll Call 
 

Roll was called and members were noted present as stated above.   
 
3. Approval of Minutes 
 
 Regular Meeting – March 25, 2021 
 

Ms. Cook stated the last sentence on Page 2 regarding the budget 
discussion should read that the budget will be presented to the DDA in May, 
not March. 
 
Board Action: 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Hopkins, seconded by Ms. Cook, to approve the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 25, 2021 as corrected.  The motion 
carried (4-0). 

 



 2 

4. Public Comments by Persons Addressing the Board 
 

Procedures for persons wishing to address the Board during the meeting 
were included as part of the agenda. 

 
5. DDA Staff Reports 
 

a. Public Safety Update 
 

There was no representative from the Police Department in attendance. 
 
Mr. Hopkins stated he would like to commend Capt. Trisha Loomis.  Mr. 
Hopkins stated in January, an issue was brought to Capt. Loomis’ attention 
during the DDA meeting regarding a lady occupying the Votran bus shelter 
on S. Beach.  Mr. Hopkins stated Capt. Loomis took immediate action and 
the problem has disappeared.   
 
Ms. Kozinski stated during the last two events held in the downtown, there 
has been a problem with scooters and bicycles on the sidewalks.  Ms. 
Kozinski stated maybe appropriate signage would help to indicate the 
sidewalks are for pedestrian use only. 
 
Mr. Berger stated he has discussed placing signage in the area with Public 
Works and asked that they coordinate the signage placement with the 
Police Department. 
 
Ms. May arrived for the meeting at 8:15 a.m. 
 
Mr. Jagger stated the issue of the scooters was discussed at the April 21, 
2021 City Commission meeting.  Mr. Jagger stated there were similar 
complaints from the beachside area along A1A.  Mr. Jagger stated the 
direction from the City Commission is to present an ordinance for their 
consideration with some sort of global prohibition. 
 
Ms. May asked that we be clear on what was stated at the City Commission 
meeting.  Ms. May asked if the wording was global prohibition or did they 
actually say outlaw.   
 
Mr. Jagger stated it will have to be presented to the City Commission for 
final approval but what was discussed was a general prohibition in the 
tourist areas and that has not been defined as yet.  Mr. Jagger stated staff 
will have to work through the drafting stage of the ordinance to clarify what 
that might include.   
 
Ms. May stated there is sometimes a habit of saying one thing and by the 
time the ruling is made, it is completely open and changed.  Ms. May stated 



 3 

she would like to make sure we stay true to what was actually requested 
which was a city-wide outlaw.   
 
Mr. Jagger stated he believed both terms were used and it will be presented 
to the City Commission for their action.  Mr. Jagger stated he will take his 
initial direction from the City Manager since there was no vote at the City 
Commission meeting but will take any direction provided by the City 
Commission.   
 
Ms. Cook stated Fritz checks in at her business any time he is in the 
downtown and he has been working in moving people from the parks.  Ms. 
Cook stated one area that needs to be addressed is the downtown Post 
Office, noting there are people there even though there is no trespassing 
signage in place. 
 
b. Monthly Financial Report 

 
Mr. Berger presented the Monthly Financial Report which was included as 
part of the packet.  Mr. Berger stated about all of the funds in the Advertising 
Budget have been spent. 
 
c. Beach Street Occupancy Report 

 
Mr. Berger stated the City Manager asked that an update be provided on 
vacancies, and that report is included in the packet.  Mr. Berger stated most 
of the vacancies are in the north block, north of International Speedway 
Blvd.   
 
Ms. May asked if attempts are being made to fill the vacancies between 
International Speedway Blvd. and Bay Street. 
 
Mr. Berger stated attempts are being made to rent them.  Mr. Berger stated 
potential tenants view the properties but the properties are not improved 
and the tenants are expected to make improvements. 
 
Ms. May asked if grants can be used for the improvements. 
 
Mr. Berger stated yes and grant funds have been used for improvements in 
the downtown.   
 
Ms. May stated she asked the Hispanic Chamber of Commerce if they 
would be interested in doing a tour in the downtown since they may be 
interested in promoting some of our areas.  Ms. May stated she will provide 
representatives of the Hispanic Chamber the map showing the vacant 
properties and asked Mr. Berger for copies of grant information that she can 
provide them as well. 



 4 

 
d. Events Update 

 
Mr. Berger stated a City sponsorship contribution was made for the St. 
Patrick’s Day event and that sponsorship was paid to BullsEye Direct 
Marketing.  Mr. Berger stated the funds originally planned to be provided to 
BullsEye from DDA funding has been used to offset expenses through a 
journal entry in the city’s finances. 
 

i. Beer & Bacon Follow-up 
 

Mr. Berger stated payments are due to Bullseye for the Beer & Bacon event 
as well as the Wine & Cheese Walk.  Mr. Berger stated payments will be 
made once all of the documentation has been received from Bullseye.   
 
Al Smith, BullsEye Direct Marketing, stated the Wine & Cheese Walk was 
held and 483 people attended. Mr. Smith stated 16 merchants participated 
which is an all-time high.  Mr. Smith stated there is interaction between the 
merchants and participants which indicates people want to support small 
businesses.  Mr. Smith stated there is a large number of participants from 
the residents of Margaritaville.  Mr. Smith stated Ocean Dance Studio on 
Beach Street had a huge turnout as well as Angel’s Dog Grooming on Bay 
Street.  Mr. Smith stated Cinco de Mayo will take place on May 5 and the 
Brews and Burger event will be held on May 22.  Mr. Smith stated he has 
reached a sponsorship agreement with S.R. Perrott which will include a 
non-profit.  Mr. Smith stated three food truck events will be held over the 
summer. 
 
Ms. May asked if there will be music at the food truck events and stated the 
individual who plays at the Farmers’ Market on Saturday is very good and 
not expensive.   
 
Mr. Smith stated there will be music but not a band. 
 
Ms. May stated there is a bus available for the residents of Margaritaville to 
bring people to the downtown and asked that events be coordinated with 
them.  Ms. May stated Margaritaville residents also have a pool on the 
beachside. 
 
Mr. Berger stated there is a band at Margaritaville that is made up from the 
residents there. 
 
Ms. May asked Mr. Smith if the Hispanic Chamber is attending the event on 
May 5 and asked if Mr. Smith has connected with them.  Ms. May stated the 
Hispanic Chamber will be holding an event on May 28 at One Daytona. 
 



 5 

Mr. Smith stated he left a message for the Hispanic Chamber but has not 
heard back from them. 
 

ii. Event Agreement Amendment 
 

Mr. Berger stated the proposed agreement includes the Burger & Brews 
event as well as the three food truck events planned during the summer. 
 
Mr. Jagger stated the draft agreement was approved at the last meeting so 
the agreement just needs execution. 

 
e. Farmers’ Market Update 

 
Mr. Berger stated the monthly report is included as part of the packet.  Mr. 
Berger stated it rained during most of the month of April and there was only 
one good weekend.  Mr. Berger stated the Market did not stay open until 
after 10:00 a.m. and we are losing vendors.  Mr. Berger stated it is difficult 
to maintain the Market if customers show up and the Market is closed.  Mr. 
Berger stated the preacher has not been at the Market recently.  Mr. Berger 
stated the numbers are low and the Market Manager has been asked to try 
to get new vendors.  Mr. Berger stated he is also asking the Market Manager 
to work some events so there are opportunities to attract people to the 
Market. 
 
Ms. Kozinski asked if he is thinking of events, such as Pictures with Santa, 
being available during other events. 
 
Mr. Berger stated he would like to have opportunities that will not cost 
additional funding.  Mr. Berger stated there were discussions about holding 
a health event and other events that would highlight the SNAP program. 
 
Ms. Cook stated she likes the reports she receives from the Market 
Manager.  Ms. Cook asked if there is additional information on the farm or 
vending machines. 
 
Mr. Berger stated he does not think there will be a move to vending 
machines but he is still pursuing the farm.  Mr. Berger stated he will be 
visiting other markets in the area and noted One Daytona has their Market 
only once a month now. 
 
Ms. Cook suggested passing out a carnation to patrons of the Market for 
Mother’s Day. 
 
Ms. Kozinski stated we should take advantage of Father’s Day in June as 
well. 
 



 6 

f. Downtown Projects Update 
 

Mr. Berger stated the trail has been completed south of Beach Street.   
 
Mr. Berger stated a Downtown Redevelopment Board Meeting was held in 
April, noting the Board has not met in almost a year, and there is an almost 
completely new Board. 
 
Ms. Cook stated she is the representative from the DDA to the Downtown 
Redevelopment Board and Cathy Washington is the representative from the 
Planning Board but all of the members but one are new appointees.  Ms. 
Cook stated it was nice to have a meeting and hopes the new Board 
members did not get discouraged from a lack of meetings. 
 
Mr. Berger stated there may be some projects being developed that will be 
presented to the Downtown Redevelopment Board. 
 
Mr. Sznapstajler stated he met with some members of the Brown 
Foundation regarding the esplanade.  Mr. Sznapstajler stated the meeting 
was coordinated by Kelly White and the purpose was to determine how the 
DDA could get news and information out about the park.  Mr. Sznapstajler 
stated he wanted to let the Foundation know the DDA is a resource. 
 
Ms. Kozinski stated the seawall is done and the docks are being installed. 

 
6. Gold & Associates Presentation 
 
 a.  Monthly Presentation 
 

Mr. Gold presented the monthly report which was included as part of the 
packet.  Mr. Gold stated the calendar of events is continually updated.  Mr. 
Gold stated ads are targeted to Margaritaville and sometimes to the 
Villages.  Mr. Gold stated he is working to update the list of merchants for 
the next rack brochure.  Mr. Gold stated the new kiosks will go up next week.  
Mr. Gold stated two or three e-blasts are sent out for marketing purposes 
before each event.  Mr. Gold stated he is trying to set up a meeting in order 
to strengthen the relationship with Margaritaville residents.  Mr. Gold stated 
he visited Worldwide Aquaponics and they are trying to set up locations as 
a hub and East Palatka is the newest location.  Mr. Gold stated he is 
currently under budget and would like to use available funds for marketing 
for special events. 
 
Ms. Cook stated she talked with Freddie Smith who is the membership 
director of the Halifax Yacht Club.  Ms. Cook stated Ms. Smith asked if they 
could be included in the city’s marketing brochure since they have so many 



 7 

people that dock at the marina that would like to know what is happening 
downtown. 
 
Mr. Gold stated he will send a dedicated e-blast to them. 

 
7. Public Comments 
 
 There were no public comments. 
 
8. Board Comments 
 

Ms. Kozinski stated some of the lights on the palm trees along Beach Street 
are not working.   
 
Ms. Kozinski stated there is a blind spot when vehicles are leaving the 
parking lot on Wall Street and asked if a mirror could be placed at the end 
of the alley. 
 
Mr. Berger stated he will address those concerns with Public Works. 
 
Ms. May stated she has received emails regarding the trash in the back 
parking lot.  Ms. May stated there is also an issue with oil that is being 
placed in the trash bin. 

 
Mr. Berger stated Waste Pro and the Public Works staff will be working to 
get compliance, noting the oil bins are in the back of the dumpsters.  Mr. 
Berger stated he would prefer that the oil bins be placed inside the 
restaurants.   
 

9. Adjournment 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
 
Michael O. Sznapstajler, Chair  Becky Groom, Board Secretary 
 
 
 



THE CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 2451 
DAYTONA BEACH, FLORIDA 32115-2451 

PHONE (386) 671-8180 
Fax (386) 671-8187 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:   May 19, 2021 

TO:  Downtown Development Authority Members 

FROM:   Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 

SUBJECT:  DDA Monthly Financial Report  

 
The following is the DDA financial report for revenues and expenditures through May 19, 
2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM: 5b 

Revenues Projection
Received to Date        

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Ad Valorem 141,012$           121,242.87$             19,769.13$       
Delinquent Ad Valorem -$                    138.39$                     (138.39)$            
Downtown CRA Payment 98,440$              61,056.13$               37,383.87$       
Interest 50$                      -$                            50.00$                

Total 239,502$           182,437.39$             57,064.61$       

Line Item Appropriation
Spent to Date               

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Professional Services 45,000$              30,000.00$               15,000.00$       
Care and Subsistence 300$                    149.25$                     150.75$             
Advertising 34,000$              32,845.81$               1,154.19$          
Events Promotion 5,000$                3,353.07$                  1,646.93$          
Supplies 1,000$                103.59$                     896.41$             
Memberships 450$                    175.00$                     275.00$             
Downtown CRA Payment 98,440$              61,056.13$               37,383.87$       
Contingency 5,312$                -$                            5,312.00$          

Total 189,502$           127,682.85$             61,819.15$       

General Activities



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Revenues Projection
Received to Date         

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Vendor Revenue 22,000$              5,629.00$                  16,371.00$       
Sponsorship 2,000$                -$                            2,000.00$          
Market Booth Sales 4,000$                -$                            4,000.00$          
DDA SNAP Revenues 4,000$                2,518.15$                  1,481.85$          

Total 32,000$              8,147.15$                  23,852.85$       
 

Expenses Appropriation
Spent to Date         

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Market Manager 18,000$              8,500.00$                  9,500.00$          
Projects (SNAP Program) 3,000$                1,400.00$                  1,600.00$          
Liability Insurance 1,500$                1,050.00$                  450.00$             
Advertising -$                    -$                            -$                    
Marketing 1,500$                165.00$                     1,335.00$          
City Fees 1,500$                -$                            1,500.00$          
DDA SNAP Expenses 4,000$                2,863.24$                  1,136.76$          
Booth Merchandise 1,000$                -$                            1,000.00$          
Other Materials & Supplies 1,500$                -$                            1,500.00$          

Total 32,000$              13,978.24$               18,021.76$       

Profit/Loss (5,831.09)$                

Farmers' Market Activities



 

Revenues Projection
Received to Date         

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Vendor Revenue -$                    -$                            -$                    
Event Sponsorship -$                    -$                            -$                    

Total -$                    -$                            -$                    

Expenses Appropriation
Spent to Date         

As of 5/19/21  Balance
Event Promotion 50,000$              9,884.50$                  40,115.50$       

Total 50,000$              9,884.50$                  40,115.50$       

Profit/Loss (9,884.50)$                

Budget Actual Balance
Total DDA Revenues 271,502$           190,585$                   80,917$             
Total DDA Expenditures 271,502$           151,546$                   119,956$           
Balance -$                    39,039$                     (39,039)$            

Reserves 39,968$              -$                            39,968$             

Notes:

DDA Budget Summary

1.  Appropriations reflect budget as amended by the DDA on February 25, 2021.

Downtown Event Activities



 
The Daytona Beach Downtown Development Authority 
DOWNTOWN FARMERS’ MARKET MONTHLY REPORT 
APRIL 2021 
by Melanie John, Market Manager  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
April 4 

Market Summary: 
 
Weather was good overall. Some strong gusts of wind and a chilly morning gave us an almost tent 
less market (only very few put tents up). Traffic flow was late today as patrons came when sun 
came out around 10a. Bridgette had to cancel music today due to unexpected health issues. Was a 
quiet peaceful morning. 
 
Vendor Recruitment: 
 
Emailed an application to 2 new prospects.. one is doing custom print on pillows, blankets, shirts, 
etc. and the other makes her own jewelry. 
 
Vendor Activity: 
 
Dangie’s to return 4/27 
 
Events/Promotions: 
 
Bridgette is scheduled to play next Saturday. 

 

April 10 

Market Summary: 

Weather was gorgeous and no sign of preacher at all. Bridgette played from 9a-Noon. She had a 
back injury and still came out and played from her wheel chair and did a phenomenal job as always. 
Overall was a very nice day. 

Vendor Recruitment: 

Two new vendors signed up this past week.. one being street tacos (should be starting next couple 
weeks) and a cotton candy vendor (starting in May) 

Vendor Activity: 

New Vendor started today; “Kyla Blue Designs”; she does custom print jobs on any fabric.. a few 
vendors were displeased with monthly collections as half of March was a rain out. I made an 
adjustment to sandbox Homestead and gave him 2 free weeks this month to make up for his 



monthly payment in March. Yanni is another that will be adjusted (will be collecting from him 
next week).   

Events/Promotions: 

Bridgette is scheduled to play next week however she will be out for the month of May. 

 

April 17 

Market Summary: 

Rained from the start of market to about 10am. Only 3 vendors showed as a result of weather. 
Music was cancelled as well.  

Vendor Recruitment: 

Currently unable to scout in person therefor will be making some posts online looking for new 
vendors 

Vendor Activity: 

Tomazin Fresh Farm, Natural Springs Dairy and Homestead Sandbox were the only ones to show. 
Yanni came to observe about an hour for rain to go however never set up. All vendors were gone 
by 10:30am when the sun finally came out.  

Events/Promotions: 

Bridgette is scheduled to play next week. 

 

April 24 

Market Summary: 

Beautiful day in weather. No music today as Bridgette out on medical for a while. Preacher showed 
and preached today out of a wheel chair. Vendors came however traffic flow was very slow; effects 
from attendance due to weather problems. Hoping a holiday push via advertising Mother’s Day 
special events will entice flow back.   

Vendor Recruitment: 

Emailed a couple of prospects this week. One makes her own jewelry and will be starting next 
week. The other has produce and am awaiting for application to be returned with a start date.  

Vendor Activity: 

Vendors discouraged today due to low traffic flow. 

 



Events/Promotions: 

Next promo is Mother’s Day. Will be coordinating special events for this day. 


	210527 DDA Agenda 2
	AGENDA
	Thursday, May 27, 2021 8:00 a.m.
	Conference Room 149-B


	Agenda Approval                 Date
	Agenda Approval                 Date

	DDA Board Meeting Minutes 210422
	DDA Monthly Financial Report Memo 210527
	Market Managers Monthly Report April 2021

